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Page 9

1 would you like to make an opening statement?

2 MS. MEDINA: I’ll reserve my statement

3 for our portion of the case.

4 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Mr. Rieser, you

5 may call your first witness.

6 MR. RIESER: Okay. My first witness will

7 be Jay Churchill.

8 MR. CHURCHILL: Right here?

9 HEARING OFFICER: Yes.

10 [Mr. Churchill duly sworn by the

11 court reporter.]

12 QUESTIONS BY MR. RIESER:

13 Q. Jay, could you proceed with your

14 testimony?

15 A. Yes. Good morning. My name is Jay

16 Churchill, and I am the plant manager of the Wood

17 River refinery. I have been in this position since

18 February 2011. Previously, I held refinery manager

19 positions at Phillips 66 refineries in Los Angeles,

20 California, and Billings, Montana, and I have been a

21 proud employee of this company and its predecessors

22 for my entire career.

23 I’d likely -— to briefly describe our

24 company and the economic importance of this refinery
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1 this information. I want to thank the Board in

2 advance for its attention to this matter and its

3 consideration of our testimony here today.

4 HEARING OFFICER: We have nothing --

5 okay.

6 MR. RIESER: With his testimony, I have

7 nothing further.

8 QUESTIONS BY MS. MEDINA:

9 Q. Mr. Churchill, you stated that in

10 November of 2011, you commissioned a new refinery

11 delayed coking unit. Are you aware of how much this

12 irirreased mercury levels in your efflLIeiiL?

13 MR. RIESER: If at all?

14 A. I am not.

Q. (By Ms. Medina) Are you aware of how

16 much mercury levels will increase at the completion of

17 the expansion project?

18 A. I am not.

19 Q. Are you -- you stated that BP’s refinery

20 in Whiting, Indiana, has been subject to -- has not

21 been subject to such standards. What standards are

22 you referring to?

23 A. I guess I would like to defer to our

24 testimony on those questions, or our experts.
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1 Q. So you’re not aware of whether BP Whiting

2 has a mixing zone for mercury?

3 A. I’m not personally, no.

4 MS. MEDINA: Okay. Thank you. That’s

5 all.

6 MR. RIESER: I don’t have anything.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you.

8 MR. RIESER: All right. Our next witness

9 is going to be Ron Green.

10 Mr. Green has brought with him a

11 demonstrative exhibit that is a schematic. I guess we

12 should have this marked as Exhibit Qnr.

13 HEARING OFFICER: Yes.

14 [Petitioner’s Exhibit One marked for

15 identification.]

16 MR. RIESER: Thank you. Ron, before you

17 get started, I want to show you what’s been marked as

18 Petitioner’s Exhibit One and ask you --

19 HEARING OFFICER: Can we swear in the

20 witness first?

21 MR. RIESER: Oh, I’m sorry.

22 [Mr. Green duly sworn by the

23 court reporter.]

24 QUESTIONS BY MR. RIESER:
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Page 18

1 oil—water separators, which are located just to the

2 right of the neutralization basin on the drawing.

3 Q. So that’s the thing that the box is

4 marked “CPI oil separators”?

5 A. “Oil sep” -- that is correct.

6 Q. Okay.

7 A. Two -— or two dissolved nitrogen

8 flotation units, which is adjacent to the CPI

9 oil-water -- oil separators on the drawing. Tank

10 A—149, which is located to the right of the dissolved

11 nitrogen flotation units, two scrubber solid clarifier

12 systerr, which is located at the middle bottom of the

13 drawing, an activated sludge unit, which is located

14 right of the Tank A-149 on the drawing, Pond Two,

15 which is located to the right of the activated sludge

16 unit, three flocculating secondary clarification

17 units, which follow —- or to the right of Pond Two,

18 and biosolid recirculation, which is indicated by the

19 RAS line on the Drawing 3-35427.

20 Flows from the principal effluent

21 treating units are discharged through the Rand Avenue

22 lift station, which is at —— which is right of the

23 secondary clarifiers, M—57, M—58, and M-74, to the

24 final effluent polishing lagoons and out to the
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1 HEARING OFFICER: Would the court

2 reporter swear in the witness, please?

3 [Mr. Bechtol duly sworn by the

4 court reporter.]

5 MR. RIESER: Mike, before you be -- Mr.

6 Bechtol, before you begin with your testimony, let me

7 walk through some of the exhibits which you’ve

8 attached to it. And I don’t know how we want to

9 identify these. I guess Two —- they are identified as

10 Exhibit One, Two, and Three in his testimony, but if

11 we mark them separately, they’ll then become Exhibit

42 Two, Three, and Fci:r. Or we can cell them Bechtoi

13 Exhibit One, Two, and Three.

14 HEARING OFFICER: Why don’t we call them

Two, Three, and Four, if that’s all right with you?

16 MR. RIESER: That’s fine.

17 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

18 MR. RIESER: Okay. So yes. Mike will

19 correct his testimony accordingly as he reads it, but

20 let me walk through each of the exhibits, and we’ll

21 have them marked. Have for marking Petitioner’s

22 Exhibit Two, which is identified as the ConocoPhillips

23 Wood River refinery mercury compliance, and it is

24 dated November 13th, 2008. So that’s Petitioner’s
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l Exhibit Two.

2 [Petitioner’s Exhibit Two marked for

3 identification.]

4 MR. RIESER: Okay. We might as well mark

5 all of these at the same time. Petitioner’s Exhibit

6 Three is a document dated July 20th, 2011. It’s a

7 letter to Mr. Sanjay Sofat —- S—O—F—A-T -— manager,

8 Division of Water Pollution Control, IEPA, from

9 myself. So let’s mark that as Petitioner’s Exhibit

10 Three, please.

11 [Petitioner’s Exhibit Three marked for

12 identification.]

13 MR. RIESER: And then Petitioner’s

14 Exhibit Four is another letter from --

15 MR. BECHTOL: Should be April 29th

16 letter.

17 MR. RIESER: Is --

18 MR. BECEITOL: Three is the April 29th

19 letter.

20 MR. RIESER: I’m sorry. The exhibit that

21 you marked as Exhibit Three should be Exhibit Four.

22 If we can make that change.

23 [Petitioner’s Exhibit Three re—marked for

24 identification as Petitioner’s Exhibit
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1 Four.]

2 MR. RIESER: Thank you. And so

3 Petitioner Exhibit Three will be a letter dated April

4 29th, 2011, to Mr. Sanjay Sofat from myself.

5 [Petitioner’s Exhibit Three marked for

6 identification.]

7 QUESTIONS BY MR. RIESER:

8 Q. All right. Mr. Bechtol, I’m going to

show you what have been marked as Petitioner’s Exhibit

10 Three —- Two, Three, and Four, and ask you to identify

11 each of them in turn.

12 A. Identify them just by saying I recognize

13 these, or ——

Q. Just say what each -- Petitioner’s

15 Exhibit --

16 A. Okay. Okay.

17 Q. What is Petitioner’s Exhibit Two?

18 A. Petitioner’s Exhibit Two would be the

19 ConocoPhillips Wood River refinery mercury compliance

20 dated November 13th, 2008.

21 Q. And the best of your knowledge, this is a

22 document that was submitted to the IEPA around the

23 time, November 2008, and is included in the Agency’s

24 record?
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Page 35

MR. RIESER: Oh, One, Two, Three, and

2 Four. Thank you.

3 HEARING OFFICER: Ms. Medina --

4 MS. MEDINA: Yes.

5 HEARING OFFICER: -- do you have any

6 objection to the -- any of the exhibits being moved?

7 MS. MEDINA: Exhibits Two, Three, and

8 Four, no.

9 HEARING OFFICER: And One as well?

10 MR. BECHTOL: One is this.

11 MS. MEDINA: No objection.

12 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Exhibits One,

13 Two, Three, and Four are admitted.

14 QUESTIONS BY MS. MEDINA:

15 Q. So you provided no additional information

16 following the June 29th, 2011, meeting to the Agency?

17 A. Correct.

18 Q. Isn’t it true that you became aware of

19 additional -- potential additional costs due to design

20 engineering following that date and before the permit

21 was issued?

22 A. We had done numerous estimates to try to

23 develop the scope of the project, but our original

24 estimates are very rough estimates, so the numbers
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Page 37

1 MR. RIESER: Could the witness be sworn,

2 please?

3 HEARING OFFICER: Yes.

4 [Mr. Allen duly sworn by the

5 court reporter.]

6 QUESTIONS BY MR. RIESER:

7 Q. Could you state your name and position

8 for the record, please?

9 A. My name is Jeffrey Allen. I’m a

10 supervising engineer with Brown and Caldwell.

11 Q. Mr. Allen, I’m going to hand you what’s

12 been marked as Petitioner’s Exhibit Five, which

13 purports to be a copy of your testimony. Could you

14 tell us what that is?

15 A. This is a copy of the written testimony

16 I’ve prepared for this hearing.

17 Q. And what you’ve got there is a true and

18 accurate copy of that testimony?

19 A. Yes.

20 MR. RIESER: Okay. At this point, I

21 would like to move for the admission of Exhibit Six

22 and have the testimony entered into the record as

23 read.

24 THE REPORTER: It’s actually Five.
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Page 43

1 only half of the flow, and I would like to ask you

2 whether it is or if it isn’t.

3 A. It would certainly be feasible to do it.

4 I would not recommend it from an engineering

5 standpoint or a compliance standpoint. It’s just too

6 much risk and uncertainty associated with having a

portion of your flow not go through your mercury

8 control device, if you will, so you just wouldn’t -—

9 the amount that you would not have to treat would

10 change over time, so if -- and I think there would be

11 circumstances where there wouldn’t be any eff -- there

12 wouldn’t be any of the flew that you could bypass

13 through the filters -- bypass the filter —— so I would

14 not advise my -- I would not advise that that be done,

15 no.

16 Q. And would treating half the flow

17 significantly reduce the cost that you estimated?

18 A. So it would not be a one-to—one factor

19 for sure, so if we only treated half the flow, we

20 would not reduce our design cost by 50 percent. It

21 would be something somewhat less than that.

22 Q. So also part of your design, as I

23 understand it, to construct a main that would -- to

24 discharge material —- excuse me -— in such a way that



N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

F—
i

0
I-

I-
I—

b
l
-

!
-

i—
ON

—
J

ON
U

i
N

J
N

J
F

0
ON

0
)

-J
ON

U
i

U
i

N
J

I
’

F
t

H
-

ct
rt

F
t

F
t

t—
F

t
CD

rj
CD

CD
CD

LQ
F

l
l)i

C
l

H
:Y

CD
0

J
CD

0
CD

0
t-

h
H

X
CD

H
CD

F
t

Cu
H

C)
H

-
CD

i-
<

CD
F

t
H

i
0

H
-

CD
CD

CD
CD

CD
F

t
C)

H
H

i
0

CD
CD

h
Cl)

H
-

<1
CD

CD
H

-
H

-
i

CD
0

CD
H

CD
F

t
CD

H
-

ct
Cl

Fl
-

3
Q

C)
H

CD
H

0
Q

CD
F

t
CD

Q
.

H
-

F
t

F
-

h-
j

j
0

L
<

H
-

<
c

-
<

H
-

C
l

H
-

.3
CD

.3
H

-
CD

CD
CD

H
-

H
I

0
0

H
K

)
H

-
.3

0
CD

F
t

i.Q
CD

H
Cu

rt
C

l
C)

.
H

H
-

T
C)

F
l-

H
H

P
H

-
H

CD
rt

D
CD

.3
-

CD
0

.3
F

t
3

h3
H

CD
CD

F
t

C)
ç
t

CD
CD

.3
L

O
C)

D
L

<
0

<
CD

C
l

H
.3

F
t

F
t

.3
0

H
-

H
H

H
C

l
CD

CD
•.

3
D

CD
CD

0
H

CD
CD

0
0

F
t

H
-

H
H

-
CD

F
t

CD
CD

H
H

i
Cu

H
.3

CD
0

CD
C

Cl
)

H
CD

CD
CD

H
i

CD
H

CD
fr

rj
I

3
C

)
C)

.
ç-

t
CO

C
)

0
CD

D
T

J
H

i
F

t
CD

C)
0

H
Q

0
.3

CD
I

CD
H

-
H

H
i

H
H

-
CD

H
F

t
ct

H
-

0
-

CD
CD

ci
-

C)
ct

ct
.3

CD
H

-
H

-
CD

L
<

ç
t

Cl
CD

J
CD

CD
H

i
.3

F
t

.3
H

.3
0

F
t

0
Q

C)
H

’
Cl)

CD
•

.3
CD

.
3

CD
CD

C)
C)

.
C)

H
-

.3
CD

CD
rI

-
.3

‘c
C

l
CD

CD
F

t
H

-
F—

’
.3

rt
CD

CD
.3

H
CD

t
CD

H
-

C
I

C
l

CD
H

CD
H

L
Q

CD
F

t
F

t
CD

F
t

H
CD

CD
CD

0
CD

0
.3

C)
.3

Cl)
<

.3
H

-
.Q

J
Ft

3
H

-
X

H
-

H
F

t
F

t
C

l
F

t
-

I
H

-
C

H
i

0
CD

CD
0

C
l

Q
H

-
H

CD
D

H
-

H
F

t
I

3
0

0
.3

CD
H

i
.3

H
-

.3
F

t
CD

.3
CD

.3
C3

3
.3

H
i

CD
Ci

CD
F

t
C)

0
F

t
CD

.3
0

CD
F

t
C

l
CD

C)
C

F
t

CD
.3

C
l

H
0

H
H

-
C)

C
l

F
t

.3
H

-
CD

F
t

.3
CD

CD
C)

.3
.3

CD
H

-
CD

H
Cl

)
-

CD
0

F
t

H
-

CD
C)

.3
CD

CD
F

t
H

-
H

-
H

3
H

3
H

-
CD

CD
3

.3
0

0
0

F
t

H
D

.3
.3

F
t

CD
H

Cl
<

3
H

-
F

t
F

t
CD

H
L

C
)

C)
H

-
L

<
CD

0
H

-
CD

H
0

F
t

0
CD

3
CD

F
t

CD
H

CD
0

H
-

.3
.3

0
CD

C
l

.3
CD

H
H

-
H

-
CD

Cl
3

F
t

LO
-

H
0

0
.3

0
3

CD
.3

H
F

t
<

‘C
I

H
‘3

-
CD

0
H

-
F

t
Cu

0
F

t
CD

0
‘-

<
0

CD
CD

CD
C

l
Fl

H
i

CD
H

i
3

LQ
<

L
<

3
0

CD
F

t
CD

-
Fl

F
t

H
-

H
CD

H
CD

.3
CD

H
H

F
t

<
C

l
C)

F
t

H
F

t
F

t
H

-
C

)
F

t
H

-
‘—

a-
F

t
CD

D
CD

CD
(3

H
0

.3
CD

F
t

H
i

(I)
.3

.3
H

.3
C

l
X

CD
CD

‘d
CD

k
<

H
CD

H
.3

C)
CD

CD
CD

CD
H

-
‘t

CD
H

-
H

CD
H

I
H

H
CD

CD
F

t
F

t
H

CD
0

H
<1

H
-

C)
F

t
C

l
‘t

I
CD

CD
H

H
i

.3
L

<
C)

C)
CD

C)
CD

.3
H

-
-
-

H
0

C
l

H
CD

CD
CD

F
t

-
0

H
.Q

CD
CD

CD
3

I-
’

-
CD

CT)
C)

.3
CD

H
F

t
H

C)
CD

0
H

-
LC

0
H

-
CD

CD
C)

CD
CD

H
H

F
t

F
t

CD
F

t
0

H
F

t
H

.3
H

CD
H

-
0

H
H

-
<

CD
H

.3
.3

0
H

.3
H

-
0

F
t

H
0

0
0

F
t

H
-

C
l

0
H

-
CD

.3
C

l
CD

F
t

H
‘3

3
H

i
H

‘3
F

t
‘3

3
F

t
H

<
‘3

c
-i

-
Q

CD
CD

‘
F

t
H

I
CD

CD
F

t
CD

H
CD

0
0

1
0

H
I

0
H

H
-

0
F

t
0

H
-

H
I

H
0

CD
H

i
H

H
3

F
t

H
F

t
C)

.

H
-

CD H
-

F
t

CD CD



N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

F
-

1
H

0
)

NJ
F

-
ID

—
J

1D
0
1

F
-

F
-

I—
i

0
)

N
J

p—
’

F
t

CD
CD

U)
hi

c
t

C) hi 1
<

-
0

F
t

CD
Di F

t
0

a
(1

)
U)

0
Di

0
CD

h-
U)

hi
hi

<
CD

U)
0

CD
C) F

t
-i Di

c
i

rt
C)

CD U)
D

l
CD

H
-

F
t

LQ
hi

F
t

H
-

F
t

CD
;i

0
ci

CD
I.Q

d
F

t
0

Di
i

h’
CD

c
-i

-
h

,t
o

H
-

U)
hi

U)
()

L
<

H
-

Di
H

U)
rt

CD
F

t
tj

U)
CD

H
-
.

o
H

-
h-

h
i

1)
F

t
I.Q

0
0

F
t

hi
:D—

Di
hi

Di
CD

CD
ci

ci
C)

ci
F

t
h

CD
h
c
j

•‘
)

CD
hi

H
-

U)
C)

H
U)

0
hi

F
t

U)
CD

F
t

X
Di

J
U)

U)
CD

F
t

CD
F

t
CD

C)
CD

H
F

t
Di

Di
F

t
H

-
F

t
CD

CD hi
0

F
t

H
,

F
t

CD
hi CD

CD
CD

Di
h-

H
,

F
t

C)
H

,

H
CD

hi
c

j
L

<

CD
F

t
F

t
F

t
ht

5 F—
’

hi
H

,
Di

0
hi

i
C::

o
F

t
q

0
F

t
hi

F
t

CD
F

t
CD

0
hi

H
-

CD
o

i
H

,

H
0

H
-

o
CD

H
-

hi
C)

1
<

Di
Di

H
F

t
0 hi

F
t

hi
CD

F
t

CD Di
C)

CD
F

t
Di

CD F
t

o
d

H
,

F
t

hi
Di

CD
0

C)
CD

hi
C)

F
t

Di
CD

0
Di

F
t

U)
hi

H
-

U)
—

0
hi

H hi
hi F

t
C)

F
t

o
C)

0
hi

0
Di

H
,

c
i

hi
U)

H
-

c
i

F
t

H
-

CD
H

-
F

t
c:

:
hi

o
H

-
C)

C)
hi

0
hi-

j
C

U)
hi

hi
U)

Di
‘-

<
U)

H
-

C)
F

t
H

-
F

t
0

hi-
’

F
t

hi-
’

H
-

hi-
’

Di
H

hi
H

-
F

t
hi

hi
F

t
H

hi
F

t
U)

H
-

CD
hir

n’
hi

CD
Q 0

F
t

Di
hi

H
-

hi-
’

U)
CD

hi
CD

F
t

H
,

Q
CD

H
-

C)
hi

F
t

hi
Di

CD
0

F
t

hi
c
i

CD
1
<

CD
hi

CD
Di

C)
F

t
hi

F
t

0
hi

ci
hi-

’
C:

CD
CD

H
Di

F
t

ci
F

t
hi

hi
CD

CD
CD

hi F
t

0 hi CD

H F
t

U) hi 0 F
t

F
t

hi-
’

CD F
t hi-
’

CD Di hi 0 F
t

0 H
,

C) hi C:
: ci CD

Di CD (i
i

0
Q

1
,I

I
0

)
N

J

C)
F

t
Di

0
F

t
H

-
C)

H
-

0
hi

hi
CD

hi
H

,
hi

Di
i

hi
hi

0
CD

0
F

t
‘d

0
I

<
H

-
CD

F
t

H
C:

hi
I

0
C)

hi
hi

H
-

Q
F

t
U

)
C:

CD
H

-
CD

Di
hi

F
t

U
)

Di
0

hi
0

hi
-

H
,

H
CD

C)
F

t
H

,
CD

H
-

U)
•

H
,

CD
hi

F
t

H
0

•
CD

hi
U)

hi
H

H
CD

0
CD

F
t

H
H

,
hi

H
hi

0
hi

D
CD

H
-

C)
C:

Di
Di

hi
H

Ci
F

t
F

t
F

t
F

t
F

t
c
i

F
t

hi
H

-
CD

<
CD

Di
I

F
t

U)
H

-
hi

F
t

I
CD

Di
F

t
0

hi
-

C)
U)

-
Di

hi
CD

U)
H

-
U)

hi
hi

H
,

hi
Di

Di
CD

F
t

C)
C

)
0

F
t

U)
hi

i
0

<
H

U)
o

H
CD

hi
H

-
0

0
hi

0
Ci

0
1

<
hi

Ci
Di

C)
hi

-<
Q

.
H

-
Di

hi
CD

Di
C)

CD
hi

H
-

F
t

CD
U)

F
t

o
hi

F
t

H
0

CD
H

,
CD

hi
0

H
-

H
0

H
H

-
ci

C)
Ci

C)
<

CD
H

CD
Ci

CD
CD

C)
F

t
hi

H
CD

F
t

hi
H

hi
Di

I
F

t
H

-
Di

F
t

F
t

F
t

H
I

hi
0

F
t

hi
F

t
hi

CD
0

CD
hi

H
hi

Di
U)

E
F

t
0

Di
Di

F
t

hi
hi

H
-

hi
F

t
F

t
CD

CD
Di

U)
hi

hi
hi

I
J
-

Di
Di

F
t

0
Di

0
CD

0
0

hi
hi

hi
Ci

F
t

Ci
-

hi
hi

F
t

CD
-

Q
U)

CD
0

H
-

H
c
i

hi
t

c
i

C)
Di

H
H

-
‘

0
H

-
Ci

hi
c
i

0
hi

C)
H

-
H

o
hi

Di
H

-
F

t
Di

0
Di

Ci
CD

-
hi

hi
H

-
F

t
Ci

F
t

hi
Ft

c
i

iQ
0

CD
U)

CD
F

t
H

-
hi

c
i

hi
F

t
F

t
o

Di
hi

’
0

0
0

H
,

U)
CD

H
,

hi
U)

H Di hi F
t

CD U Ci U) F
t

c
i

0 hi F
t hi-
’

Di CD Di Di F
t

0 hi CD ci H
-

C) F
t

0 hi hi 0 ci CD H



-J
N

D
N

i
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
0

G
D

G
D

F
-

O
i

0
1

N
)

N
)

—
0

G
D

G
D

-
i

G
0
1

F-H
0 H

-
Dl

a
CD

H it
j 0

Di
it

it
a

H
CD

(0
<

Di
CD

CD
H

I
it

0 CD
CD

a
H

I
it

CD Cl
)

Di
CD

it

it
a

D
_

0
Di

CD it

it
CD CD

CD
it H Di it CD

H
,

it
H

I o
CD

•-‘
-)

H
,

H
I

0 Di
I-

<
O

U)
it

0
C U) Cl

)
o

CD
H

H
I

Di
H

I
Z

H
I

H
-

0
0

a
a

Z Cl
)

0
it

H
-

U
)

U)
U)

CD
F-

<
H

I
(_

)
o

Di
Z

C’
]

o
CD

Ci
)

i
CD it

H
,

CD
Z

C
)

Di
C’

]
0

CD
CD

C
]

H
-

H
I

Di
o

Z
L

<
H

,
H

I
CD

it h
-

it
CD

0
Di it

it
H

-
II

i
CD

Q
Dl it

Dl F
-

Di
H

,
H

I
H

,
it CD

it
CD

r
t

H
I

F-
it

CD Di
H

-
CD

it
h-

it
H

-
0

U

CD
a Di

it
CD

it
H

I
ii

it

it
:

o
it

CD
Di

CD
a

<
it

CD
CD

-,

o
o

CD
CD

H
I

H
,

0
fr-

i
0

a
F-

I
Q

it
C]

L1
k
<

h
CD

F-
U

)
•

CD
-

Cl
i

Di
F-

it
CD

H
-

H
-

CD
:i

i
L

a
Q

Di
H

D
i

H
-

-
-

<1
Di

it
CD

it
-

Di
L

<
CD

CD
U C]

a
D

l
Di

CD
0

H
I

i
it

H
I

CD
H

I
F

-
0

CD
a

0
‘<

La
0

H
-

H
,

3
0

CD
I

CD
H

I
it

H
-

Di
C]

H
-

d
it

it
0

CD
Di

CD
it it 0

it
it

0 i
CD

Di
Di

1
it

it
it

a C]
it

C]
CD

1
Di

d
K

)
CD

t1
CD

•
CD

Di I
H

-
0

it
it

LQ
H

,
D

H
- a

it
H

I
a

0
C]

it
C]

H
I

a
-

Di
a

LQ
Di

CD
it

Di
La

it
CD

3
1

CD
it

CD
Q

CD
•‘

-)
Di

-
CD

D
i

it
Cl)

Di
0

H
,

i
<1

0
H

-
a

CD
C]

H
I

H
I

it
it

o
Q

.
CD

D
it

it
h

CD
H

CD
Di

CD
o

H
-

CD
it

L
a

0
CD

-<
C]

it
H

-
C]

it
CD

it
CD

H
I

CD
a

CD
0

Dl
0

Di
H

it
H

i
0

o
L

a
C]

Q
CD

Di
3

H
II

it
H

H
-

0
it

CD
<1

<
H

-
0

a
CD

CD
a

H
,

H
-

H
F-

C]
a

CD
it

it
Di

CD
•

H
i

H
-

it
h

o
Cl)

a
h

CD
CD

C]
*

H

a
CD

CD
Di

F
H

a
a

C]
C]

CD
C]

C]
L

<
k
<

0
•

<
it

it
CD

D
C]

Di
Di

it
it

it
o

H
-

H
-

Di
o

CD
it

1
CD

it
C]

•‘
J

CD
Di

CD
0

a
a

H
I

it
C]

CD
•

Y
CD

H
I

CD
it

F—
I

0
it -

H
-

Di
CD

L
Q

it
it

Di C]
CD

a
it H

Di
Di

a H
I

o
L

a
CD

C]
CD

Di
it

0
:i

<
a

o
CD

H
,

H
it

CD
I

CD
o H

I
Dl

C]
0

0
C]

C]
CD

H
I a
i
t

0
CD

H
,

0
H

I
C]

-

0
H

I
CD

H
I

Cli
)

i

CD
I I



N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

N
-’

1—
’

N—
’

N
-’

F-
’

F
-’

F
-’

F-
’

N
-’

F
-’

U
)

N
J

N
-’

C
D

D
C

D
—

J
C

D
U

i
U

)
N

J
F

-’
C

D
cC

)
C

D
-U

C
D

U
1

U
)

CD
H

Di
it

CD
H

-
CD

H
-

0
i

CD
3

CD
D

’
D

cC
)

H
0

H
C

l
Di

cC
)

h
CL)

H
CD

0
C)

Di
it

cC
)

C)
CD

cC
)

H
-

C)
it

u
ij

<
Di

1
it

H
-

ç
C)

CD
3

H
,

C)
H

-
it

0
I—

s
h

h-
H

-
0

CD
CD

h
CD

C
C

l
H

-
)<

<
CD

CD
-<

3
H-

3
0

CD
<

1
H

•
CD

0
H

-
0

(fl
C

H
it

C
H

II
K

)
C

l
3

C
H

,
h

<
•

CD
H

-
Di

H
-

•
U)

Di
•

H
I

CD
0

C)
d

3
3

rt
•

it
-

0
I

i
t

c<
fr

cC
)

CD
0

CD
CD

o
h

CD
0

CD
C

l
F—

’
<

“
3

F
t

C
l

L
I-

cC
)

CD
it

H
c<

H
-

Di
H

H
I

I-
C

H
-

F-
H

h-
r
t

H
CD

CD
H

0
CD

H
h

CD
Di

0
H

-
C

l
C)

-
CD

CD
0

CD
3

U
i

Q
CD

H
-

C)
.

it
<

C)
-

H
-

cC
)

C
l

cC
)

‘
-

c
-

U
i

CD
-

CD
it

-
H

-
H

-
3

H
-

Di
H-

’
it

0
C

l
<

[-I
CD

Di
rt

it
C

l
rt

C
l

L
<

cC
)

CD
C

l
i
t

H
-

C
l

cC
)

0
CD

i
t

C)
CD

3’
H

-
0

3
CD

3
0

CD
H

-
U)

Di
C

C)
H

II
H

-
3

CD
C

fr
it

C
l

H
-

F
t

it
3

it
Di

3
5

it
o

it
0

CD
cC

)
CD

Di
C)

C
l

•
Di

CD
it

it
CD

CD
H

Q
0

Di
L

<
it

d
it

CD
CD

it
•

Di
H

-
Di

CD
Di

CD
h

H
C)

h
CD

CD
h-

<1
t3

Di
CD

CD
CD

Di
H

i
ci

CD
0

H
-

CD
it

it
ci

Di
I-I

CD
1D

’
it

it
1

0
CD

it
H

-
CD

h-I
CD

it
H

it
CD

CD
CD

CD
t

ci
d

it
CD

H
-

d
Di

CD
Di

it
Di

it
CD

H
-

CD
0

0
it

0
0

3
Di

it
CD

D
’

0
—c

CD
H

ci
3

h-
it

C)
it

it
CD

H
i

CD
H

-
ci

CD
Di

F
<

Di
CD

it
H

-
0

CD
5

5
H

<
CD

H
C

l
it

CD
it

Di
it

<1
CD

CD
H

-
it

CD
it

C)
H

0
it

Di
Di

u
D

CD
H

-
CD

C
l

CD
0

CD
0

L
<

0
i

CD
H

Di
H

5
Di

Di
it

3
0

C)
H

-
it

ci
CD

it
“3

H
,

C)
it

H
-

H
-

Di
C)

ci
Di

it
<

Di
Di

C)
Di

CD
0

0
Di

C
l

it
CD

[5
it

0
it

0
CD

i
[5

H
0

CD
CD

i—c
H

-
CD

ci
C)

Di
H

-
Ii

it
H

Di
H

H
,

C
).

[5
Di

0
[5

CD
CD

0
H

CD
it

CD
Di

CD
0

<
H

-
3

3
CD

•
3

C
l

CD
it

C)
5

0
it

l
Di

CD
Di

CD
3

-
CD

H
-

it
[5

cC
)

H
“3

0
it

[5
0

CD
Di

<
CD

-<
cC

)
it

Di
CD

[5
Di

0
C

l
0

it
Di

it
CD

H
H

-
CD

<
it

ci
1

it
3
’

H
-

H
-

Di
C

l
it

Di
CD

H
-

Di
0

CD
CD

CD
3

CT)
5

C
l

Di
it

it
C)

Di
CD

cC
)

CD
H

,
CD

Y
’

CD
CD

Di
C)

it
3

Di
0

hI
CD

L
<

Di
I

CD
C

l
U

i
H

H
-

it
<1

3
it

H
-

Di
it

CD
3

CD
CD

CD
3

it
0

0
CD

cC
)

‘d
5

Di
cC

)
H

-
C

l
0

it
H

i
Di

H
Di

Di
it

1D
it

it
Di

cC
)

H
H

it
CD

i
CD

CD
CD

0
CD

it
[5

CD



U
)

U
)

U
)

U
)

U
)

H
-

—
I

H
U

)
U

)
C

D
U

)
O

N
—

J
O

N
U

]
U

)
U

))
CD

LU
O

N
-J

O
N

U
)

U
)

U
)

H
ct

rJ
it

H
C

l
CD

CD
H

CD
CD

CD
Dl

c
t

0
H

-
CD

H
-

CD
Cl)

Cl)
<1

C
l

Cl)
CD

H
Cl)

H
it

CD
CD

CD
H

C)
H

-
H

-
0

H
h

C)
CD

Di
H

-
C

l
0

CD
0

•
CD

H
-

0
Cl)

it
K

)
>

CD
iQ

it
3

3
O

c
K

)
CD

CD
0

C)
.

•
•

•
•

Di
Di

‘-
<

C
l

0
CD

H
1

it
C)

.
C)

H
H

<
0

H
-

•
it CD

Cl)
H

-
l

0
C

l
it

-<
C)

it
‘i

i
F-

i
H

i
CD

Ci
C

)
C

)
C

)
Ci

H
H

o
0

•
H

it
Di

-
Cl)

Cl)
0

H
i

CD
i3

CD
CD

J
Di

Di
H

-
CD

-
-

Q
h

it
C)

H
CD

Cl)
CD

H
i

h
H

CD
CD

H
-

it
C

3
CD

it
C

l
C)

CD
H

Di
it

CD
3

it
Di

CD
H

H
-

0
H

C
l

CD
o

C)
Cl)

0
<

F
-

c.Q
C)

it
.C

)
0

3
H

-
Di

H
o

3
it

it
H

-
it

CD
Di

H
-

CD
it

it
H

3
Cl)

CD
it

()
C

l
•

0
CD

H
‘<

Cl)
Cl)

CD
<

Di
it

it
Ci

H
Di

C
l

CD
Cl

)
CD

•
CD

CD
o

C)
H

-
0

H
H

-
it

Di
it

CD
CD

it
CD

CD
Di

H
C

l
X

it
CD

0
it

CD
CD

Cl)
H

-
<1

H
0

CD
CD

H
H

-
‘C

H
C

l
Ci

C
l

CD
CD

<
C

l
it

Di
H

CD
CD

H
-

Di
CD

CD
Di

CD
H

H
-

.Q
Di

C
l

it
it

H
‘0

H
i

C
l

0
C

)
CD

H
-

C
l

H
-

CD
H

,
CD

H
i

i
C)

0
H

i
CD

it
H

it
0

C
l

H
-

H
CD

it
H

i
C

l
Di

Cl
)

it
L

<
H

Di
it

N
)

it
0

H
it

CD
CD

Di
C

)
0

C
l

it
-<

0
<

Di
3

it
Di

H
CD

H
i

it
CD

Di
0

CD
CD

CD
it

I
C

l
Di

H
H

it
it

C)
Cl

)
LQ

CD
H

-
Cl)

•
it

CD
Di

it
0

Ci
H

-
0

0
it

C
l

H
-

H
-

Cl)
0

CD
it

H
-

D
H

-
CD

CD
H

H
Di

CD
it

c5
H

i
CD

H
-

.Q
CD

CD
CD

CD
0

Ci
Di

CD
it

H
i

Cl)
it

H
-

C)
H

-<
CD

it
3

J
Q

C)
CD

Di
H

it
0

C
l

H
-

C)
Di

H
3

CD
3

H
0

H
CD

H
Ci

.)
0

‘-
<

it
0

C
l

H
-

0
i

CD
it

H
•

Di
Di

CD
H

-
it

H
-

<
C)

Cl)
I

it
H

it
3

it
Di

C
l

H
-

<
-

CD
•
i

I
H

-
CD

H
CD

C
l

•-
J

it
H

0
C

l
C5

H
-

C
l

CD
H

-
H

-
o

3
I

cI
C

l
H

-
it

3
CD

H
-

CD
H

it
it

it
3

CD
it

0
0

it
CD

Di
it

H
U

-
0

it
CD

Di
Di

H
-

CD
CD

H
CD

C
l

3
C)

it
Ci

CD
H

-
C

)
it

CD
C

l
CD

CD
CX

)



N
)

N
)

N
J

N
J

N
)

U
)

N
J

N
-

LO
N

-
H

-’
F

-
N

-’
N

-’
LO

—
J

O
U

)
N—

’
N

-’
H

-’
H

-’
U

)
I’

-)
N

-’
U

)
U

)
—

J
U

)
U

’
$

U
)

N
J

-

Di
F

t
Di

H
-

it
Di

F
t

T
C)

-t
<

CD
-<

Di
(I)

h
0

CD
h-

0
0

Q
Di

Di
H

CD
C)

H
-

H
-

CD
C)

H
-

Di
Di

rt
H

-
it

CD
0

H
-

CD
0

it
it

H
Di

Q
.

H
a

C)
H

a
3

Nd
Nd

CD
H

-
Di

0
ty

’
H

-
CD

H
it

H
-

H
CD

rt
Di

CD
F

t
0

Di
CD

0
0

H
-

H-
’

Di
CD

rt
H

0
K

)
it

K
)

H
0

C)
K

)
H

•
0

H
3

3
-<

•
Di

H
ç

H
-

I-
”

i
a

Q
N

)
it

0
N

)
it

Di
a

Di
i

a
d

’
H

-
tY

’
0

H
i

0
J

Di
Q

CD
CD

Di
F

-
CD

F
-

CD
it

N
d

Di
CD

C)
H

’
Di

H
’

0
Di

it
it

Di
i

C)
CD

c’
>

•-
.)

H
-

.3
-<

C
)

•-
J

H
-

Di
it

0
0

0
CD

CD
H

(n
Di

3
0

0
Di

it
CD

d
C)

Di
Di

it
CD

H
H

-
Di

Di
Di

Di
I

Di
Di

Di
it

N
d

it
it

a
it

i
cn

L
<

0
.

H
H

’
C

H
-

it
C)

Nd
0

D
Di

CD
Di

Q
(n

Di
it

a
a

Di
H

-
Di

‘
I--

’-
I--

’-
H

-
it

a
H

-
it

I
CD

H
i

Di
Q

CD
F-

Di
J

Di
1

CD
C)

Di
0

Di
<

C)
0

H-
Di

CD
H

H-
H

i
H

-
0

it
C)

Di
CD

it
3

it
0

CD
H

H
Di

H
-

0
it

it
H

-<
0

it
H

-
<

Z
N

)
Nd

h-
D

N
d

CD
it

0
CD

Di
0

Di
H

-
0

Di
CD

CD
H

0
H

i
Di

k
<

Di
C)

H
i

it
H

H
’

Di
H

-
0

it
•

it
U’

)
H

’
H

-
CD

Di
CD

I-
’

ai
it

H-
’

it
‘

H
-

it
H

-
‘t

CD
D

i
it

0
Di

it
•

o
H

-
Di

H
’

•
Di

Di
Di

H
CD

0
•

0
Di

it
H

I
CD

Di
0

H
-

CD
H

’
H

H
,

3
H

-
1

it
3

a
it

H
-,

H
N

d
it

Di
0

0
-

0
F-

H
CD

‘-
<

H
H

it
<

C)
it

CD
Di

it
CD

CD
()

Di
CD

0
H

-
H

0
0

H
i

H
3

Nd
CD

0
d

H
a

Di
H

-
CD

H
I

0
CD

H
-

Di
H

C)
H

CD
CD

0
I

0
Di

I
Ii

a
Di

it
CD

3
C)

Di
3

H
Di

CD
3

H
‘<

i
it

-
0

I
it

F-
H

-
a

‘-
<

a
CD

H
0

CD
F—

’
it

3
I

0
a

H-
0

Q
Di

H
-

H
CD

‘<
it

Nd
CD

CD
‘-c

i
it

a
it

it
H

a
H

-
H

i
CD

a
H

CD
CD

0
a

it
CD

it
3

3
Di

H
it

Di
H

H
-

CD
Di

a
0

Q
Di

H
it

CD
it

N
d

it
Di

3
it

Di
CD

CD
it

H
-

0
CD

Di
H

-
H

-
H

-
3

Di
3

3
it

it
0

it
H

-
0

a
Di

Di
a

C)
0

CD
N

d
H

,
H

-
3

F-
3

I—
it

it
CD

‘-
<

it
H

H
-

D
’

H
-

•-
J

H
-

H
’

Di
H

-
Di

Nd
Di

CD
3

H
-

H
’

Di
H

-
H

’
it

a
it

H
-

it
0

H
-

it
it

it
Nd

Q
CD

CD
H

-
H

H
H

’
CD

CD
Di

C)
Di

0
CD

C)
CD

H
-

H
Di

Di
CD

H
-

N
d

H
H

-
H

’
Di

Nd
0

o
Nd

<
Di

•
it

d
it

Di
H

i
N

H
-

Di
it

3
—

a
it

it
-

CD
Di

CD
Di

CD
a

H-
’



N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

N
)

N
J

N
J

H
—

_J
o

F
-

F
-

H
U

]
)

U
)

N
J

0
U

]
U

]
—

i
U

]
U

]

H
C

l
h

i
Di

Di
it

it
Cl

)
H

-
0

Di
CD

H
-

CD
hi

i
ci

C1
h-

h
CD

it
)<

Di
it

C)
)

H
-

Di
C

l
CD

CD
CD

CD
hi

it
CD

H
-

0
H

Cl
)

C)
L

<
it

C
l

Di
CD

h-
hi

L
<

C/
)

it
0

h
0

0
CD

hi
3

U)
H

-
it

CD
hi

ci
CD

C
l

F—
’

H
0

Di
it

H
-

3
0

C
)

3
•-,

.)
Di

CD
3

it
K

)
>

0
U)

C)
iQ

CD
CD

C
)

I
IC

i
t

•
F

-
3

Di
‘

0
‘3

hi
•

CD
C

I
CD

C)
C

l
ci

hi
it

hi
Di

3
F-

h
CD

Di
C

)
D

0
it

I—
’

<
H

-
0

<
H

CD
CD

hi
C

)
CD

it
h-

h
C

l
0

it
CD

0
h

i
hi

it
Di

H
ci

Di
-<

Z
H

-
CO

3
<

CD
-

CD
Di

H
C

)
Li

i
it

H
C’

]
<

H
-

0
0

U)
it

<
0

hi
hi

h
i

3
D

0
ci

CD
it

ci
CD

3
ci

Cl
)

ci
CD

ci
CD

CD
it

-<
Di

hi
it

Di
Di

hi
ci

C
l

hi
h-

h
H

-
0

it
hi

H
-

H
<

CD
Di

0
(1)

Di
<

hi
H

-
-<

it
CD

C)
CD

k
<

h-
h

0
3

CD
Q

hi
Di

3
CD

3
0

h
i

(I)
Di

C)
0

ci
CD

i
Di

CD
C

l
H

-
C)

0
h-

h
CI

)
H

-
it

Cl)
<

it
ci

H
CD

-
U)

CD
C

l
CD

h-
h

C
)

CD
hi

1
H

-
H

-
CD

0
hi

CD
C

l
hi

it
hi

0
hi

H
-

1
H

ci
CD

H
-

Di
0

it
CD

CD
C

)
H

0
Cl)

•
c
-i

-
C

l
C

l
H

I
it

0
F-

h
<

it
Cl)

F—
h

CD
H

-
3

it
ci

CD
CD

0
C

l
3

0
ci

CD
0

0
•-

J
CD

C)
h

i
L

<
ci

C
l

C
l

3
CD

it
U)

ci
hi

CD
U)

C
l

C
)

•
(J)

L
i

CD
(1)

it
CD

C)
hi

H
-

H
-

0
H

-
CD

U)
CD

h
i

Di
0

H
-

tY
o

U)
CD

C
l

CD
C

l
it

CD
CD

CD
hi

hi
Cl)

II
3

CD
cY

)
ci

U)
3

CD
L

Q
it

C
l

hi
CD

0
CD

FQ
hi

C)
it

it
Di

D
i

CD
h-

h
<

C)
h

i
C/)

0
CD

it
it

b
it

it
hi

H
-

H
-

Cl)
D

i
it

N
J

hi
ci

ci
H

-
H

-
Di

U)
C

l
it

0
0

H
-

Di
C/)

it
CD

hi
CD

CD
CD

b
-

CD
CD

ci
H

0
(1)

p
h

i
<

LC
)

i
it

hi
C

l
F

<
it

H
hi

CD
hi

it
Di

CD
C)

H
H

-
Di

H
-

0
LY

3
Li

i
U)

0
it

Di
H

it
CD

N-
)

D
i

H
-

CD
CD

ci
CD

it
h
i

it
<

Di
U)

•-
J

C/)
3

U)
-<

Cl)
0

CD
H

-
it

Di
CD

Di
0

3
Cl)

C)
C)

C
l

C
l

it
C

l
it

h-
h

Di
C

)
it

0
0

H
Di

it
J

CD
H

-
H

-
H

CD
0

h
i

h-
h

Di
C/)

H
-

0
it

C)
0

0
Di

0
H

-
C)

H
-

hi
CD

CD
it

3
Di

0
3

CD
h
i

i
Li

i
H

-
H

-
3

H
-

ci
hi

H
-

D
H

-
h
i

M
U)

H
-

3
h

i
U)

H
Di

Di
it

tY
H

-
0

<
it

C/)
Di

Di
C

l
L

<
C/)

CD
H

3
C

Cl
)

Cl)
Cl)

Di
hi

H
-

F
<

C
l

i
Di

CD
Di

0
Cl)

H
-

H
-

0
H

-
Di

H
it

CD
H

h
i

N
)

h
i

it
ci

CD
3

C
l

Z
-<

H
-

CD
Di

0
C/)

H
-

hi
Cl)

C)
H

-
C/)

Di
hi

H
3

CD
H

-
C

l
H

-
I—

’
0

CD
CO

0
.

it
•‘

)
g

h-
h

0
CD

—
H

,
C

l

h
i

Di CD 0
1 0



N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

N
J

H
W

N
J

0
C

D
C

D
H

-
I—

’
O

N
CD

C
D

CD
CD

—
J

O
N

C
D

C
D

N
)

Di
H

Di
CD

Di
D

i
U)

U)
H

Q
0

U)
H

,
CD

-
it

h
ç
t

H
,

it
CD

H
it

C
l

Di
0

CD
h

K
)

3
1

U)
CD

it
it

i

o
ç
t

I
H

-
it

I
H

-
Di

CD
Di

3
H

-
it

‘-Q
Z

IC
Q

CD
it

CD
h

C
a

[:‘
l

CD
it

Di
U

)
(I)

H
-

0
H

H
it

H
,

H
H

H
-

Di
H

Di
H

C
o

it
it

0
CD

Z
3

CD
H

,
U

)
a

y
it

—
it

CD
it

C)
CD

<
i-

<
D

i
0

H
CD

0
it

U)
CD

C)
it

0
H

,
I-H

I
U)

H
I

it
0

CD
h

CD
II

2
i

Di
h

H
-

CD
H

H
-

CD
it

0
L’

J
U)

Di
Di

U
)

CD
U)

H
3

U)
t’

l
C

l
Di

a
a

H
H

-
CD

a
<

a
CD

0
CD

H
-

Di
<

H
it

it
0

H
-

0
U)

c
CD

1
Di

<
0

it
H

-
CD

cn
CD

1
C

l
U)

Di
H

CD
it

H
-

<
a

Di
-<

H
-

C
l

0
it

0
0

i
H

-
CD

it
it

CD

CD
U)

it
<

H
,

C)
3-

0
H

,
Di

Di
H

H
it

i
CD

U)
CD

3
it

3
it

Di
Di

it
0

<
it

IC
CD

CD
a H

-
CD

H
-

it
U)

a
C)

d
Di

[-
I

3
C)

H
it

0
-

Di
CD

CD
3

CD
0

NO
3

CD
CD

3
I

Di
o

F-’
it

-
it

C)
CD

CD
C

l
CD

Di
Q

h-
0

:
Di

-<
it

3
3

Di
3

-
0

CD
C)

CD
it

CD
<

0
Di

0
o

:i
it

Di
H

,
o

C)
H

,
CD

CD
Di

<
CD

3
3

[-
0

Di
X

it
it

CD
3

f
r

I-

H
Di

it
0

Di
it

CD
H

,
I-

H
-

H
-

C)
CD

3
0

3
Di

H
-

H
,

3
;i

it
H

-
<

0
-<

it
3

0
H

-
H

CD
CD

3
0

0
3

Q
H

-
H

-
it

H
-

H
it

CD
U)

CD
CD

U)
it

CD
U)

II
U)

Di
H

-
CD

it
it

it
II

Di
H

,
H

J
CD

it
H

-
Di

3
0

it
CD

H
,

CD
3

NO
3

ç:
I-

<
D

i
3

it
H

H
-

Di
•J

H
CD

CD
U)

CD
(i

i

H

H
-

C)
H

-
H

-
L

<
0

3
:i

NO
U)

H
d

it
it

Cl)
CD

H
Di

CD
H

,
H

U)
H

-
CD

H
K

)
3

3
K

)
CD

•
CD

it
•

H
-

C
l

h-
Di

it
H

-
it

3
Di

D
H

-
U)

0
Di

it
Z

Z
F

<
H

I—
I

3
1

i
U

)
CD

0
it

-
1

CD
•

•
U)

0
0

CD
CD

Di
•

it
H

,
h

it
d

H
CD

Di
k

<
C)

H
‘
j

CD
<1

it
0

Ii
CD

[‘
I

0
Di

Di
Di

CD
I-

3
U

)
H

it
H

I-
C)

-<
it

L’
i

Z
CD

3
Di

O
CD

3
H

it
••

•
•

CD
it

0
0

Di
H

-
CD

H
CD

H
,

H
C)

C)
0

CD
H

-
3

C
H

l
ç
t

U)
Q

it
3

h
CD

it
H

-
0

•
0

U)
Di

L
<

C)
Ci

CD
H

,
H

it
it

•
-

a
0

-
3

H
-

Di
L

Q
U)

0
CD

it
3

H
-

H
U)

0
L

<

<
Di

0
U)

CD
H

C
)

it
it

H
H

H
-

3
I-

CD
CD

(U
D

i
CD

U)
C)

CD
I-

I
U)

it
Di

U)
H

it
I

H
,

Di
3

it
H

-
Di

Di
C)

C)
<

<
CD

Di
Di

0
CD

CD
-

3
H

•
C)

I
H

h3
l

H
,

H
CD

h
i

CD
CD

-<
H

it
3

•‘
-)

H
0

0
I

H
,

a
U)

0
C)

3
Di

CD
H CD



N
)

N
)

N
)

N
J

N
)

I—
i

U
)

N
)

H
O

D
U

)
a)

0
1

U
)

N
)

C
)

0
1

0
1

U
)

0
1

0
1

U
)

N
J

()
C)

ct
it

CD
H

,
C3

H
,

CD
C

l
3

CU
CD

Ci
CU

Di
CD

h-
CD

D
CD

H
-

h’
H

-
CD

CD
CD

h-C
0

CD
0

CD
L

J
ct

CD
CD

CD
)<

0
H

CD
Cl)

C)
CD

Ci
Ci

it
CD

CD
CU

it
ç
t

CD
L

i-
it

0
H

-
CD

H
Cl)

h-I
H

CD
0

Q
it

H
-

H
C)

.
CD

CD
C)

Q
CD

-
C)

.
H

-
l)i

Cl)
C)

.
it

0
CD

CD
0

Fl
H

-
3

U)
it

it
CL

Cl
i

H
-

Fl
CD

Q
Cl

i
Cl)

Fl
it

CD
CU

tY
H

-
CD

Cl
i

-
it

<
H

-
-

IC
CD

Cl
CD

it
0

10
h-

CD
<

CD
H

it
CD

CD
N

it
•

CD
<

CD
0

•
H

-
CD

CD
•

Fl
CD

CD
it

F
-

3
CD

Cl
i

U)
C)

.
3

H
0

it
CD

-
t3

CD
C)

.
Fl

3
it

CD
-<

CD
it

Fl
CD

I
CD

H
CD

Cl)
C

l
Cli

CD
it

CD
Ci

0
CD

Cl
i

I
CD

CD
-<

it
H

C
)

H
-

Fl
H

CD
it

it
CD

0
1

3
3

Cl
)

<
‘-<

CD
CD

0
•
)

it
Ci

C/
)

H
-

CU
it

H
‘-

<
0

C)
.

0
CD

it
0

CD
H

-
0

CD
CD

0
0

Fl
it

CD
0

-
CD

Fl
3

Ci
CD

CD
Fl

it
CD

H
-

CD
0

CD
it

it
CD

Ci
Fl

it
CD

C
)

3
it

it
H

-
it

CD
H

CD
Ci

Fl
CD

CD
Fl

Cl
i

CD
0

it
Cl

i
l3

0
Fl

<
D

I—
CD

Fl
CD

it
0

CD
it

it
CD

H
,

H
-

CD
CD

0
<

C)
.

(_
)

0
CD

C)
.

CD
‘-

<
Fl

CU
Fl

I
0

C
).

CD
CD

CD
CD

Cl
i

CD
CD

CD
it

H
,

Di
CD

H
-

I
Cl)

h
Fl

it
CD

C)
.

CD
H

-
-<

it
J

CL
CD

3
it

it
CD

CD
CD

H
-

it
0

CD
CD

it
CD

CU
CD

0
C

).
it

Ci
0

it
H

Fl
it

H
-

CD
it

CD
it

0
0

H
II

I
H

H
3

CD
H

-
CD

3
C)

)
H

C)
Ci

H
,

CD
H

H
-

CD
I

CD
C)

.
Fl

H
CD

CD
it

CD
H

-
0

H
it

0
H

H
0

CD
0

CD
H

-
CD

LO
it

0
C

l
N

CD
CD

C
).

0
0

I
C

l
CD

0
CD

0
H

-
I

CD
CD

0
CD

it
0

H
-

Fl
CD

CD
L

Q
CD

Cl
i

it
CD

H
,

it
(J)

CD
U)

CD
C

l
CD

it
L

i-
CD

‘
H

II
C

l
CD

0
it

it
0

it
H

-
CD

H
-

CD
CD

0
Ci

Fl
CD

Q
H

,
<

it
H

-
it

H
-

Fl
C

l
CD

.Q
CD

0
0

Ci
Fl

CD
Ci

it
H

l
LQ

H
-

Fl
3

0
H

it
0

H
-

H
-

CD
CD

it
CD

CD
CU

F
-

H
H

-
3

CD
H

-
-

H
,

H
-

it
C)

.
3

C)
.

0
Cl)

CD
it

H
-

H
i

Cl
i

Q
3

H
i

CD
<

‘C
)

H
-

Ci
it

CD
CD

Cl
i

H
,

3
•

-
H

-
H

CD
it

CD
it

CD
Fl

H
-

0
i

CD
CD

CD
CD

C)
.

it
C)

it
CD

0
it

it
it

0
0

0
CD

—
h

‘-C
)

0
Cl

)
h-C

l)i
CD

it
CD

D
Ci

CD
3

‘-
<

H
-

CD
Ci

CD
Fl

CD
0

H
CU

CD
0

it
0

‘<
CD

CD
CD

0
H

-
i

it
CD

it
3

Fl
0

CD
CD

Cli
it

0
CD

i
C)

.
Q

CD
it

CD
0

H
-

CD
C)

.
Ci

CD
‘0

CD
CD

CD
CD

CD
Cli

3
H

-
it

H
-

CD
CD

C
l

CD
H

-
CD

D
C)

.
0

0
it

Fl
H

-
CD

Fl
h-

h
CD

0
CD

(/
)

CD
it

H
i

C)
it

CD
•.

J
CD

Ci
•

H
-

H
,

it
CD

CD
H

H
-

Cl)
Fl

H
0

3
H

,
0

CD
CD

Fl
it

3
CD

H
it

H
CD

it
H

i
it

it
CD

Ci
CD

CD
0

C
)

CD
CY

Fl
H

H
-

it
Fl

H
-

H
-

Y
Fl

H
Cl

i
it

(i
i

Ci
CD

H
-

•
Cl

)
H

-
CD

H
0

CD
H

,
CD

CD
C

l
it

0
H

-
U

’
H

i
CD

h
H

3
C/)

‘<
<

it
3

CD
0

0
C)

.
H

-
‘-C

)
it

Fl
CD

C
l

H
it

CD
H

-
0

•
CD

it
it

H
,

Ci
0

CD
CD

Fl
CD

0
Ci

‘
-

CD
CD

it
H

CD
it

•
J

C)
.

CD
0
1 N
)



r’o
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
H-

’
F-

’
F-

’
F-

’
F-

’
H

-’
H

-
F—

’
H

U
)

N
)

F-
’

C
)

L
D

C
)

—
3

a)
0

1
U

)
N

J
F—

’
C

)
C

)
—

1
0
)

0
1

3
U

)
N

)
H

H
-

F
t

F
t

H
-

i
t

U)
(D

C)
F

t
C

)
H

)
F

t
U)

CD
U)

H
)

0
-

0
i

0
CD

Di
0

CD
Di

C
CD

Q
3

Di
i

U)
I--’

-
H

)
Di

it
Di

F-
Di

I
rt

F
t

U)
C)

3
o

U)
3

0—
it

C)
0

h
CD

it
D

i
LQ

C)
Di

<
CD

H
)

0
C)

i-C
)

H
-

(I)
CD

CD
0

-
-

CD
I

0
fr

0
U)

U)
0

h
IC

i
K

)
Fl

-
3

F
l

IC
T

3
I-

CD
-c5

L
<

K
)

•
•

•
I—

’
•

Di
ç
t

•
[-

H
-

0
•

Fl
i-C

)
U)

CD
C)

it
CD

U
-

Q
3

CD
II

CD
Di

C)
i

CD
D

U)
c

<1
CD

Di
CD

C)
it

0
H

-
Di

t
H

-
U)

Di
C)

Di
it

it
i
t

CD
H

i
H

)
F

t
O

i-C
)

it
it

3
CD

U)
it

Fl
“
3

C
L

H
-

CD
J

UD
I-H

C
)

it
Ca

C
)

CD
Fl

CD
H

-
it

C)
h’

(I
)

hI
0

i
0

Di
CL

Di
U)

i-C
)

0
3

CD
Di

CD
0

H
1
<

h
it

CD
CL

i-C
)

0
Fl

i
t

CL
Di

it
CD

it
CD

U)
i-C

)
Di

Fl
U)

CD
I

H
-

Fl
it

0
F-

H
-

D
Di

Fl
CD

<
C)

it
I

3
CD

CD
0

CD
Fl

C)
0

3
it

it
H

-
Di

Di
C)

0
Fl

0
i-C

)
C)

.)
i

0
CD

5
CD

Fl
0

Di
it

it
it

C)
H

-
Di

H
)

k
<

it
(I)

C)
3

L
i-

H
)

C)
CL

3
it

1Y
it

0
it

•
Fl

it
CD

H
-

H
-

CD
H

-
0

CD
H

-
it

CD
U)

C)
0

U)
C)

it
H

-
CD

F-
CD

Di
0

CL
0-

.
C)

0
C)

0
it

CD
0

iC
)

3
Di

H
-

‘-<
0

CD
C)

D
H

it
H

H
-

Fl
H

)
i-C

)
it

H
)

)
C)

Fl
0

CD
it

‘-<
<1

0
i-

<
H

)
Di

i-
<

0
•

Di
H

-
C)

Ci
CD

Di
H

-
0

CD
Ci

0
it

CD
L

i-
C)

(I
)

U)
CD

H
C)

H
it

CD
Fl

D
o

Di
H

-
CL

CD
CL

3
Di

CL
D

-I
Di

it
Fl

it
C)

.
J

0
C)

C)
CD

‘1
it

0
Di

C)
it

0
Di

0
-

CD
C)

C)
CD

0
Ci

it
C)

Di
it

CL
H

)
U)

i
it

U)
H

-
C)

F-
CD

h
Cl)

U)
L

<
H

-
Fl

CD
it

U)
U)

hI
H

CL
I

Di
CD

H
)

0
CL

Di
Fl

i-C
)

Di
H

-
H

-
CD

CL
CD

I
it

o
U)

0
CD

Fl
0

Di
C)

3
Di

0
C)

H
)

CD
Di

H
it

i-
<

it
H

-
CD

U)
H

-
H

-
F-

0
Fl

it
it

I
CD

U)
it

H
-

H
)

it
H

)
H

-
H

CD
I

0
Fl

“
.

H
-

it
CD

H
-

it
o

3
CD

F-
-’

lj
CD

CD
Di

0
0

l-
it

H
-

3
i-C

)
l-

C)
it

CD
it

C)
i-C

)
U)

H
-

Di
3

CL
-

0
Di

U)
Di

it
CD

Di
U)

<1
CL

it
Di

it
F—

0
U)

CD
Fl

U)
Fl

CD
CD

0
0

it
it

Di
H-

’
H

-
0

C)
it

CD
U)

CL
it

Di
CD

o
C)

Fl
CL

Dl
Di

F—
’

CL
J

U)
it

U)
it

U)
CD

CD
0

C)
.

Di
C)

H
-

CD
it

Fl
CD

I
D

i
0

0
Fl

0
it

U)
it

CD
C)

H
-

U)
0

t
it

C)
CD

C)
i-C

)
‘

H
-

H
-

CD
H

U)
H

)
CL

Fl
Di

Fl
Di

CD
0

U)
U)

-
C)

Di
0

C)
it

C)
Fl

Fl
it

U)
Di

Di
H

-
it

0
it

CD
•‘

3
CD

H
-

o
U)

1-I
0

•
U)

H
-

Fl
0

it
CD

-
it

Ci
0

t
1

C)
C)

—
Di

I—
-’

C)
CD

CD
H

I
0

U)
CD

Di
H

-
()

J’
L

<
C)

U)
j

1
CD

3
‘

0
it

H
CD

CL
i-C

)
C)

‘-
)

CL



N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

F
-

F-
’

F-
’

F—
’

F-
-’

H
’

F-
-’

H
’

H
’

0
)

N
)

H
’

0
1

0
1

0
)

0
)

0
1

0
)

N
)

H
’

0
0
)

0
1

0
)

N
)

H
’

ft
ft

H
-

H
-

CD
ft

Di
C

l
ft

ft
0

H
CD

Di
CD

H
H

-
CD

0
0

Di
CD

CD
C

l
CD

H
-

H
CD

C
l

CD
C)

C
H

-
CD

CD
Di

H
-

C
l

C)
Di

C)
J
’

H
3

ft
Ij

C
l

ft
ct

C)
CD

c
ct

-<
C

l
Q

CD
CD

H
-

Di
C

l
ft

H
0

CD
0

3
C

l
CD

CD
ft

L
<

CD
-

ft
CD

K
)

K
)

3
Di

CD
K

)
I

Di
IC

)
H

H
-

K
)

0
ft

0
ft

Di
ft

ft
C

l
I

ft
ft

0
H

CD
Di

C)
C)

ft
Cl)

CD
CD

ft
0

CD
0

•
Di

D
Di

-

H
3

H
<

3
Di

<1
CD

ft
CD

Di
ft

Di
Di

CD
H

CD
C)

CD
H

fl
CD

C]
)

C
)

3
ft

H
H

ft
C

)
CD

ft
H

0
-<

CU
Di

0
CD

0
0

ft
d

C
l

J
0

C)
CD

0
ft

Di
3

i
c)

-’
H

Cl)
H

•
)

H
ft

CD
CD

C
l

Di
CD

H
ft

CD
ft

C
0

CD
C

l
CD

H
ft

H
Di

Dl
ft

H
•-v

J
-

H
-

ft
0

H
CD

ft
‘

CD
3

CD
‘t

t
ft

Di
CD

0
ft

C
l

CD
ft

H
-

C)
H

-
CD

C)
ft

Di
‘-

<
C)

ft
CD

0
CD

ft
Di

ft
Di

Di
Di

0
ft

CD
H

Di
Di

H
<1

H
0

•
CD

CD
Di

Di
C

CD
ft

CD
Dl

ft
ft

0
CD

H
CD

0
CD

CD
H

Cl)
H

J
H

CD
<

H
H

CD
CD

CD
Di

CD
Di

H
CD

Cl)
3

0
0

Di
Di

-
ft

CD
CD

0
o

ft
ft

3
3

<
<

H
-

CD
0

3
ft

C
0

H
-

Di
CD

CD
CD

0
Di

C
l

D
i

<
CD

C
l

H
H

CD
CD

3
C

H
-

D
C)

Di
C

l
I

CD
C

l
CD

CD
C

l
0

CD
CD

H
ft

CX
)

H
H

0
Di

0
ft

H
i

Di
Di

H
Dl

0
Di

H
ft

CD
H

Di
Di

CD
ft

Cl)
1Y

Di
CD

Di
3

I
H

ft
ft

ft
H

i
H

ft
CD

CD
C)

0
CD

H
-

CD
H

-
CD

CD
H

H
Cl)

CD
H

H
ft

H
-

H
H

-
H

-
H

ft
C)

ft
0

d
ft

H
-

H
-

H
-

0
C)

3
3

H
CD

D
CD

CD
CD

ft
H

i
ft

Cl)
H

-
CD

Cl)
3

CD
CD

H
Di

-<
H

i
H

3
H

,
ft

ft
H

ft
H

CD
H

-<
CD

CD
0

C)
ft

Q
H

Di
CD

ft
o

o
H

ft
ft

H
I

H
C

CD
3

0
0

H
Cl

H
-

c
ft

CD
CD

H
CD

CD
Di

ft
Cl)

-
H

‘c
CD

CD
.1

C
l

C
l

0
F-

I
II

CD
ft

3
H

C
l

H
i

-<
-<

‘
)

ft
0

CD
C)

ft
ft

0
CD

ft
3

ft
H

<1
3

H
-

CD
D

i
Di

CD
Q

C)
ft

CD
CD

Di
ft

H
0

3
Di

Q
CD

ft
H

CD
H

H
H

i
ft

ft
ft

D
i

H
-

H
3

Di
‘t

5
H

-
CD

H
-

ft
0

0
ft

ft
CD

Cl)
0

Di
3

Dl
L

<
ft

3
H

<
H

,
CD

ft
0

CD
H

o
ft

H
-

Cl)
ft

0
H

CD
y
’

ft
ft

i
H

-
CD

CD
C

C)
Di

Di
ft

ft
L

<
I
<

ft
C

D
i

ft
Di

CD
0

0
Di

CD
H

.,
-)

ft
ft

ft
ft

i<
CD

Di
CD

CD
CD

H
CD

CD
(i

i



Page 55

I that the BP Whiting facility has been given a mercury

2 variance. Is that correct?

3 A. That is correct.

4 Q. Do you know when that variance was

5 issued?

6 A. I don’t know off the top of my head.

7 Q. Was it within the last year?

8 A. I believe it was in the last year or two.

9 MR. RIESER: Okay. Thank you. I have no

10 further questions.

11 HEARING OFFICER: Anything else?

12 MS. MEDINA: (Shaking head “no.”)

13 HEARING OFFICER: No? Okay.

14 MR. RIESER: And his exhibit, Exhibit

15 Five, has been admitted?

16 HEARING OFFICER: Yes. Yes. We - you

17 moved to admit -- I think Exhibit Five was admitted.

18 Yes, sir.

19 MR. RIESER: Just making sure.

20 HEARING OFFICER: I know.

21 MR. RIESER: All right. I’ll call my

22 next and last witness, which is Jim Huff.

23 [Discussion off the record.]

24 HEARING OFFICER: You can swear in our
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1 next witness.

2 [Mr. Huff duly sworn by the

3 court reporter.]

4 MR. RIESER: Can we go off the record

5 briefly?

6 [Discussion off the record.]

7 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. We’re sworn in?

8 MR. RIESER: We’re sworn in.

9 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Go ahead.

10 MR. RIESER: Thank you.

11 QUESTIONS BY MR. RIESER:

12 Q. Mr. Huff, you prepared awriten

13 testimony to deliver at this hearing; correct?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. And to that testimony you’ve appended a

16 number of exhibits; is that correct?

17 A. Yes.

18 MR. RIESER: And I’d like to run through

19 the exhibits -— and we’re having them admitted

20 separately; is that correct? Or do we want just one

21 group exhibit?

22 HEARING OFFICER: What are they?

23 MR. RIESER: The exhibits are -- well,

24 Exhibit One is a copy of Mr. Huff’s CV. Exhibit Two
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1 is a memo dated June 12, 2008, from Bob Mosher to

2 Jaime “Robins” -- “Raybins” -— excuse me --

3 R-A-B-I-N-S.

4 HEARING OFFICER: I mean, I guess we can

5 submit it -- there’s a whole stack of -— I mean, there

6 would be a lot to submit separately; correct?

MR. RIESER: Correct.

8 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Maybe -- let’s

9 do it -- do you have -- Ms. --

10 MS. MEDINA: We have an objection to

11 Exhibit Number Seven as irrel -— well, I don’t know if

12 that’s still ‘tour Exhibit Seven.

13 MR. RIESER: That is my Exhibit Seven.

14 MS. MEDINA: As irrelevant.

15 HEARING OFFICER: Is that in this group,

16 or is that in this stack?

17 MR. RIESER: That is -- where is Exhibit

18 Seven?

19 MR. HUFF: It would be the last one.

20 MR. RIESER: Yes. Right down here. Oh,

21 it’s right here.

22 HEARING OFFICER: I mean, could we take

23 all of them as a group, except we’ll separate the one

24 that’s ——
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1 MR. RIESER: Yes.

2 HEARING OFFICER: -- being objected to?

3 MR. RIESER: That’s fine. And I don’t

4 have a problem with that. And then we have --

5 MR. BECHTOL: Is that Eight -- Exhibit

6 Eight? Is that —-

MR. RIESER: And then Exhibit Two is this

8 monster.

9 HEARING OFFICER: Is that the testimony,

10 or is that ——

11 MR. RIESER: No. This is his

12 antidegradation report, which is already in the

13 record.

14 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. So that’s

15 already in the record? We can still mark it as --

16 we’re on? Okay. So that would be eight?

17 MR. RIESER: No. This is Exhibit Two.

18 HEARING OFFICER: Oh, this is all --

19 MR. RIESER: It’s just not typed -- it’s

20 not stapled in.

21 HEARING OFFICER: I see. I -- okay.

22 MR. RIESER: So why don’t we admit as

23 Petitioner’s Group Exhibit --

24 THE REPORTER: Six. Six.
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1 HEARING OFFICER: Well, that’s okay, as

2 long as you call it --

3 MR. HUFF: Well, now they’re going to

4 have different exhibit numbers than --

5 HEARING OFFICER: Well, you can call it

6 by the name of the document.

MR. RIESER: I -- okay. All right. So

8 the decision is we’re going to introduce each of them

9 separately?

10 HEARING OFFICER: If that’s okay. I

11 mean, there’s only six; right?

12 MR. RIESER: I’m sorry. Can we go off

13 the record? There isn’t really --

14 HEARING OFFICER: Yes, we can go off the

15 record.

16 [Discussion off the record.]

17 HEARING OFFICER: We’ll go back on the

18 record. We just had an off-the--record discussion

19 about how we’re going to number exhibits, and having

20 decided, Mr. Rieser, go ahead and -—

21 MR. RIESER: Okay. We’re going to -- I’m

22 going to hand to the court reporter what needs to be

23 marked as Group -- Petitioner’s Group Exhibit --

24 THE REPORTER: Six.
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1 comments on the exhibit which we have objected to as

2 argumentative and improper opinion testimony.

3 MR. RIESER: I’d like to move the

4 admission of —-

5 Q. (By Mr. Rieser) Well, first of all, Mr.

6 Huff, would you look at what’s been marked as Group

7 Exhibit Six and tell me if that’s your written

8 testimony and the first six of your exhibits?

9 A. Yes, it is.

10 MR. RIESER: At this point, I would move

11 for the admission of Group Exhibit Six.

12 PARING OFFTflR: And you are objecting

13 to which portion?

14 MS. MEDINA: Objecting to that portion of

15 his testimony which follows the subheading “2011 NPDES

16 Permit Mercury Limits” and includes a discussion of

17 the exhibit attached to his testimony, which we also

18 objected to.

19 HEARING OFFICER: Can I see it?

20 MR. RIESER: And the exhibit -- I’m

21 sorry. The exhibit is Exhibit Seven, so let me go

22 through the --

23 HEARING OFFICER: Can you find me the

24 page that she’s referring to?
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1 He has a vast realm of knowledge in this area. The

2 information he is -- to which he is testifying is

3 information which is, as he states within it,

4 information which he —- on which he typically relies

5 as an expert, and certainly the Board is in a position

6 where it can discern when Mr. Huff is being

argumentative.

8 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. So we want --

9 you want to wait and do it now, or you want to --

10 MR. RIESER: Well, let me --

11 HEARING OFFICER: You want to have him

12 testify ——

13 MR. RIESER: -- let me ask him to

14 identify his exhibit.

15 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Has he been

16 sworn in?

17 MR. RIESER: Yes.

18 HEARING OFFICER: Sorry.

19 THE REPORTER: A while ago.

20 HEARING OFFICER: Can’t remember. Okay.

21 I’m sorry. Go ahead.

22 A. Exhibit Seven is entitled “Technologies

23 for Control and Measurement of Mercury Emissions from

24 Coal—Fired Power Plants in the United States -- a 2010
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1 Status Report.”

2 Q. (By Mr. Rieser) And this is also an

3 exhibit which you discuss in your testimony which is

4 part of Group Exhibit Six?

5 A. Also referenced as Exhibit Seven in my

6 testimony. Correct.

7 MR. RIESER: Okay. And I admit -- move

8 for the admission of Exhibit Seven.

9 HEARING OFFICER: Can I see Exhibit

Seven?

11 MS. MEDINA: And we would object that it

12 is irrelevant and not part of the record.

13 HEARING OFFICER: This is not part of the

14 record?

15 MR. RIESER: It is admittedly not part of

16 the record. It’s introduced for the purpose of Mr.

17 Huff’s discussion of comparing the cost of mercury

18 treatment at a wastewater facility with the cost of

19 treatment of mercury emitted from coal-fired power

20 plants, which was the subject of an extended Board

21 rule-making already, so it’s something the Board is

22 familiar with. But admittedly, this is not a docu --

23 HEARING OFFICER: But is it being used to

24 refute something in the record?
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1 reporter please swear in the witness?

2 [Mr. Mosher duly sworn by the

3 court reporter.]

4 MS. MEDINA: I guess before we start, we

5 should just clarify how our exhibits will be handled

6 so that we’re clear.

7 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

8 MS. MEDINA: I have marked my exhibits,

9 although I will admit there are a couple that are out

10 of order, so I assume you’re going to start with

ii renumbering them with the court reporter?

HEARING OFFICER: We dont haveto. I

13 mean, we can -- the —- you mean just the -— in terms

14 of changing the letters to numbers, or in terms of

15 reordering them?

16 MS. MEDINA: Right. You want to use the

17 numbers I have on my exhibits?

18 HEARING OFFICER: I think so. I mean,

19 yours are all part of the record; is that correct?

20 MS. MEDINA: With the exception of A that

21 Bob has prepared.

22 HEARING OFFICER: I’m inclined to just

23 leave it the way it is unless you --

24 MS. MEDINA: Okay.
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1 HEARING OFFICER: — have any problems,

2 concerns.

3 MR. RIESER: I don’t have any -- no, I

4 don’t have any objection. We can leave it the way it

5 is.

6 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Let’s just do

7 that.

8 MR. RIESER: Yes.

9 MS. MEDINA: Okay. All right. We’ll get

10 started, then.

11 QUESTIONS BY MS. MEDINA:

12 Q. Bob, cn you stte your name for the

13 record?

14 A. It’s Robert Mosher.

15 Q. And can you provide us some details

16 regarding your educational background?

17 A. Yes. I have a Master of Science in

18 zoology from Eastern Illinois University.

19 Q. And can you provide us some details

20 concerning your current position at the Illinois EPA?

21 A. Yes. I’ve been with Illinois EPA almost

22 27 years. Most of that time and currently I am the

23 manager of the Water Quality Standards Section in the

24 Division of Water Pollution Control, Bureau of Water.
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It was the first time, yes.

2 And were you involved in the Agency’s

3 to limit mercury in the modified permit?

4 Yes.

5 I’d like to start with Respondent’s

6 Again, I apologize. These are out of

order. Showing you Respondent’s Exhibit H, which is

8 Document Number ——

Q. And you recall this as information you

received for purposes of analyzing mercury at this

facility in the context of the modified permit?

22 MS. MEDINA: I would move to admit this

23 as Respondent’s Exhibit H.

24 HEARING OFFICER: Respondent’s Exhibit H

A.

Q.

decision

A.

Q.

Exhibit H.

9 MR.

10 Q. (By

11 Do you recognize

A. Yes,

13 Q. Can

14 A. It’s

15 at Outfall 001 of

16 December -- well,

17 2007.

KRUSE: 83.

Ms. Medina) -— 83 of the record.

this document?

Tdn

you explain what this document is?

a listing of effluent data collected

the facility in November and

actually, August through December

18

19

20

21 A. Yes.
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1 is admitted.

2 MR. RIESER: No objection.

3 MS. MEDINA: Okay.

4 Q. (By Ms. Medina) Bob, looking at that

5 data, is this the data you were provided pursuant to a

6 request you made to the facility -- the Wood River

7 facility?

8 A. Yes. We needed mercury data from the

9 effluent using the low—level U.S. EPA 1631 lab method,

10 and I believe we did ask them to do that sampling --

11 do that monitoring.

12 Q. I’d like to turn your attention to

13 another document, Respondent’s Exhibit A, which is

14 Document 93 of the record. Do you recognize this

15 document?

16 A. Yes, I do.

17 Q. Can you describe what this document is?

18 A. This is a memo I wrote to Jaime Rabins.

19 It’s dated June 12th, 2008, and it’s my water

20 quality—based effluent limit evaluation for the

21 refinery.

22 Q. And this was a document that you created

23 to document your water quality analysis?

24 A. Yes. It’s -- the document contains a
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. Did you agree with the conclusions that a

3 best degree of treatment analysis would need to be

4 addressed prior to making a decision on whether to

5 grant a mixing zone?

6 A. Yes.

7 MS. MEDINA: I’d move to admit

8 Respondent’s Exhibit B.

9 MR. RIESER: No objection.

10 HEARING OFFICER: Exhibit B is admitted.

11 MS. MEDINA: Should I be handing these to

12 you?

13 THE REPORTER: I guess they go to you.

14 HEARING OFFICER: I’ll file them with the

15 clerk. He doesn’t need --

16 MS. MEDINA: Okay.

17 THE REPORTER: So I guess they go to you;

18 right?

19 MS. MEDINA: Okay.

20 HEARING OFFICER: Yes.

21 Q. (By Ms. Medina) Turning to Respondent’s

22 Exhibit C. Could you describe what this document is?

23 A. This is information regarding the

24 treatability study for mercury at the refinery.
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HEARING OFFICER: I don’t think we

2 have --

3 MS. MEDINA: Anything --

4 HEARING OFFICER: -- G, I, J, and K.

5 MS. MEDINA: Okay. So at this time, I’d

6 like to move to admit Exhibit G.

7 MR. RIESER: No objection.

8 HEARING OFFICER: Exhibit G’s admitted.

9 MS. MEDINA: And I’d like to move to

10 admit Exhibit I.

11 MR. RIESER: I’d like to voir dire that,

12 if imay—-

13 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

14 MR. RIESER: - before I decide whether

15 I’ve got an objection.

16 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

‘7 QUESTIONS BY MR. RIESER:

18 Q. Mr. Mosher, it’s correct that Exhibit I

19 is a document that does not appear in the record? Is

20 that correct?

21 A. What’s Exhibit I?

22 HEARING OFFICER: Oh.

23 MS. MEDINA: Your demonstrative exhibit

24 for aiding your testimony.
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1 A. Oh. To my knowledge, I’m unaware if it’s

2 in the record or not.

3 Q. (By Mr. Rieser) Is this a document that

4 you prepared?

5 A. Yes, it is.

6 Q. And when did you prepare it?

A. Probably two to four months ago.

8 Q. And the purpose of preparing it was to

9 gather information for the purpose of your testifying

10 here today?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. Was this information conreyed in ari., way

13 to ConocoPhillips during the permitting process for

14 either the modified permit or the renewal permit?

15 A. No, it wasn’t.

16 MR. RIESER: I’d object, because it’s not

17 a part of the record.

18 MS. MEDINA: I’d like to respond to that

19 objection.

20 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

21 MS. MEDINA: The information that this is

22 based on is all information that is in the record.

23 Similar to some other information we’ve talked about

24 today, this is simply Bob conducting some math on
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1 information that exists in the record.

2 HEARING OFFICER: I’m going to admit

3 Respondent’s Exhibit I.

4 MR. RIESER: Thank you.

5 QUESTIONS BY MS. MEDINA:

6 Q. Okay. Bob, I’d like to just turn your

attention back to a discussion we didn’t quite finish.

8 On the information that you were providing to your

9 colleagues about additional information that you felt

10 would be beneficial in making a decision on best

11 degree of treatment, your -— the Respondent’s Exhibit

12 I, you e—mail —— dJd you receive for review any

13 additional information beyond what was presented

14 during the June 2011 meeting from Phillips 66?

15 A. I believe that’s Exhibit F. Am I looking

16 at the right one?

17 Q. Oh, I’m sorry. F. Yes. Excuse me.

18 A. Okay. I did not receive any of the

19 information that I brought up in this memo from

20 Phillips, no.

21 Q. Given the information that you did review

22 and that was provided, did you have an opinion or

23 conclusion as to the economic reasonableness of the

24 granular media filtration technology for treating
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I I’m still -— it’s still hard for me to make a judgment

2 on affordability when I don’t have any facts in front

3 of me or our Agency doesn’t have facts in front of

4 them on affordability.

5 Q. So just to be clear, the only information

6 you receive from Phillips 66 concerning the cost of

7 the granular media filtration is what is —- is what

8 was provided in the Powerpoint slides that we’ve

9 reviewed during your testimony today?

10 A. That’s correct.

11 MS. MEDINA: Thank you.

12 T-IERING OFFICER: Is --

13 MS. MEDINA: I believe that’s it. We’ve

‘ admitted A through I?

15 HEARING OFFICER: Yes. Yes.

16 MS. MEDINA: Okay.

17 MR. RIESER: Can I take a five-minute

18 break before we start up?

19 HEARING OFFICER: Sure. Yes.

20 MR. RIESER: Thank you very much.

21 [A brief recess was taken.]

22 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. We’ll go back on

23 the record. Mr. Mosher, you are still under oath. We

24 will begin with Mr. Rieser’s cross-exam.
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1 Q. Whose supervision is that under?

2 A. Gregg Good.

3 Q. Do you know whether the samples are

4 continuing to be taken at this particular station?

5 A. I do not know.

6 Q. Do you know whether the methodology for

7 sampling water quality in the Mississippi by the IEPA

8 has been changed?

9 A. If you are asking do we still collect

10 mercury data, the answer is no.

11 Q. You don’t collect mercury data?

12 A. Not on a regular hais.

13 Q. Why not?

14 A. Our lab can’t do the U.S. EPA Method 1631

15 procedure.

16 Q. There are other certified labs in the

17 state with whom the IEPA could contract; correct?

18 A. There’s one that I know of, and we have

19 done that on a limited basis, but it is not part of

20 our ambient water quality monitoring network routine.

21 Q. Tell me your title and job

22 responsibilities again, please.

23 A. I’m the manager of the Water Quality

24 Standards Section, Division of Water Pollution
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Page 127

1 and whether or not the water quality standard -- human

2 health water quality standard is achieved; correct?

3 A. That’s correct.

4 Q. Excuse me just a minute. With respect to

5 the discussion on water quality sampling in the

6 Mississippi, were any of these concerns conveyed to

7 ConocoPhillips during any of the discussions regarding

8 either permit?

9 A. I don’t believe they were for mercury.

10 Q. The two thousand and -- the draft

11 permit -— draft modified permit, as we’re calling

1.2 it was isucd in 2005; corrct? It wert out for

13 public notice around then?

14 A. Correct.

15 Q. And the draft permit didn’t -- did not

16 contain any limit on mercury; right?

17 MS. MEDINA: I would object to that.

18 That misstates facts.

19 HEARING OFFICER: Pardon me?

20 MS. MEDINA: That misstates facts.

21 HEARING OFFICER: It misstates facts?

22 MR. RIESER: Then you can say I’m wrong.

23 MS. MEDINA: Are you aware of the actual

24 date ——
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1 A. No.

2 MS. MEDINA: -- the draft -— on that

3 issue -— that --

4 HEARING OFFICER: Does that answer your

5 question?

6 MR. RIESER: I think we’re a question

behind. Let me start over --

8 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

9 MR. RIESER: -- just so the record’s

10 clear.

11 Q. (By Mr. Rieser) Would you agree that the

12 Hraft modified permit went out for pub1c notice in

13 2005?

14 A. That’s the permit we went to hearing on?

15 Q. Yes.

16 A. I don’t believe there was anything

17 limiting mercury in that permit, no.

18 Q. What was the basis for requesting mercury

19 data from ConocoPhillips to which you testified in

20 2007?

21 A. I’m not sure, but I think there were some

22 questions about mercury at that hearing, if I’m not

23 mistaken, but that’s -— my memory on that’s a little

24 rough, so —
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Page 136

1 standard at the edge of the mixing zone?

2 A. No. As I said, to be able to do that,

3 you need to know what the upstream concentration is in

4 the river.

5 MS. MEDINA: Thank you.

6 MR. RIESER: Nothing further.

7 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you, Mr.

8 Mosher. You may call your next —-

9 MS. MEDINA: Can we have five?

10 HEARING OFFICER: Oh, you want to take

11 five minutes?

12 MS. MEDINZ\:. Five-minute bathroom bre3k?

13 HEARING OFFICER: Sure.

14 [A brief recess was taken.]

15 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. We’ll go back on

16 the record. The Agency may call its next witness.

17 MS. MEDINA: I would like to call Jaime

18 Rabins.

19 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. The court

20 reporter will swear you in.

21 [Mr. Rabins duly sworn by the

22 court reporter.]

23 QUESTIONS BY MS. MEDINA:

24 Q. Hi, Jaime. Could you state your name for
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1 that addresses any of the concerns cited in Exhibit E.

2 MR. RIESER: Thank you.

3 A. No. Again, no, I did not see that report

4 or any such report.

5 MS. MEDINA: That’s all I have.

6 MR. RIESER: That’s all.

7 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

8 MR. RIESER: That’s all I’ve got.

9 HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. Ms. Medina,

10 do you have anything else you’d like to present as

11 part of your case?

1 MS. MEDIN: No. I’ll rcserve any

3 comments for our briefs.

14 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Mr. Rieser, did

15 you --

16 MR. RIESER: I need -— I’d like to recall

17 Jim Huff for a brief rebuttal testimony, please.

18 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Mr. Huff, I’ll

19 remind you you’re still under oath.

20 MR. HUFF: Yes, ma’am.

21 MR. RIESER: Per the request of the court

22 reporter, I’m going to move over here to —-

23 THE REPORTER: Thank you.

24 MR. RIESER: —- so that he can hear.
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Page 176

1 Q. -— from expansion?

2 A. Not with certainty, again for the

3 caveat —-

4 MS. MEDINA: That’s all --

5 A. -— that I answered with respect to Mr.

6 Rieser’s question, not so much the uncertainty on

7 what’s in the effluent. Even if you take the

8 statistical uncertainty in the database that exists

9 now, they would still meet that human health standard,

10 is my belief, because it’s an annual average limit.

11 MS. MEDINA: That’s all I have. Thank

12 you.

13 MR. RIESER: Nothing further.

14 HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. Anything

15 further?

16 MR. RIESER: No.

17 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Well --

18 MR. RIESER: That completes our

19 presentation.

20 HEARING OFFICER: That completes the

21 presentation for both parties. I’ll just read the

22 briefing schedule into the record. The transcript is

23 due by October 15th and will be posted on the Board’s

24 website. The public comment deadline is October 16th.



Page 177

1 Any public comment must be filed in accordance with

2 Section 101.628 of the Board’s procedural rules.

3 The parties have agreed to the following

4 briefing schedule. First, the deadline for the

5 stipulation on the fecal coliform will be filed by

6 October 17th. The petitioner’s brief will be due by

November 15th and respondent’s brief is due by

8 December 17th. Petitioner’s reply will be due by

9 December 28th. Mr. Rieser, would you like to make any

10 closing argument?

11 MR. RIESER: No. I’ll reserve that for

12 the brief.

13 HEARING OFFICER: Ms. Medina?

14 MS. MEDINA: Same.

15 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. We have one

16 member of the public here who has already indicated he

17 does not wish to make any statement on the record, so

18 if there’s nothing further, at this time we will

19 conclude the proceedings. Thank you, everyone, for

20 your participation.

21 MR. RIESER: Thank you very much.

22 MS. MEDINA: Thank you.

23

24
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I

2 NOTARIAL CERTIFICATE

3
I, John Arndt, a Notary Public within and

4 for the County of St. Clair, State of Illinois, do
certify that pursuant to Notice there came before me

S at the Madison County Adminietration Building, 157
North Main Street, 1i1 the Village of Edwardsville,

6 State of Illinois,

7 TI-lB AFOREMENTIONED PARTICIPANTS,

8 whose words were taken in machine shorthand and later
reduced to type-writing; and the transcript is now

9 herewith returned.

10 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set
my hand and seal this 164—4 day of

11 A.D., 2012.

12 My commission expires June 6, 2014.

Notary Public
15

16
OFFICIAL SEAL
JOHN ARNDT17 NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS

18
MV COMMISSION EXPIRES:06106114

19

20

21

22

23

24

L.A. COURT REPORTERS, LLC - (312) 419-9292
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